
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

March 07, 2023 at 5:30 PM  

Council Meeting Room, 101 North State Street, 
Abbeville, Louisiana 70510 

 

AGENDA 

NOTICE POSTED:  March 6,  2023 at 4:00 P.M.  

REGULAR ORDER OF BUSINESS 

             Call to Order by Mayor 
             Roll Call by Kathy Faulk  
             Prayer 
             Pledge  

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
                  (To allow comments on any of the following items prior to action.) 

PERSONNEL 

1. To approve the annual 2% pay increase for the unclassified position of Main Street Manager. 

2. To ratify the appointment of personnel to the Abbeville Police Department. 

PRESENTATIONS 

1. To honor Ms. Le'Asia Brown who was recently chosen as one of the winners of the 2023 Gospel 

Talent Search - Councilwoman Terry Broussard. 

2. Ms. Tammy Broussard from Eaton Park Elementary receiving a proclamation for "Youth Art Month". 

3. Mrs. Victoria Bourque to provide an update on VEDA. 

MINUTES AND APPROVAL OF BILLS 

1. To approve the minutes from the Committee meetings held on December 20, 2022, January 3, 2023 

and February 7, 2023, the special City Council meetings held on January 3, 2023 and January 

17,2023 and the regular City Council meetings held on December 20, 2022, January 3,2023, January 

17,2023 and February 7, 2023. 

2. To ratify bills paid in the month of February 2023. 

3. To approve the budget to actual report for January 2023. 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Public hearing to receive public comments on the following ordinances: 

a.  An ordinance to repeal and re-enact the liquor permit ordinance, Chapter 3. 

b.  An ordinance to adopt Article VII - Use of golf carts and slow moving vehicles into Section 12. 

c.  An ordinance to amend Section 15.5-29 (c), Location of Trash Containers, to designate the City as 

the governing authority that determines variance regarding household garbage containers within the 

city limits instead of the Vermilion Parish Police Jury. 

2. To accept the recommendation from the Ordinance Committee meeting held on February 7, 2023 to 

adopt the following ordinances: 

a.  An ordinance to repeal and re-enact the liquor permit ordinance-Chapter 3. 

b.  An ordinance to adopt Article VII - Use of golf carts and slow-moving vehicles, into Section 12. 

c.  An ordinance to amend Section 15.5-29 (c), Location of trash containers, to designate the city as 

the governing authority that determines variances regarding household garbage containers within the 

city limits instead of the Vermilion Parish Police Jury. 

3. To adopt a resolution in support of legislation to create the Acadiana Regional Juvenile Justice District 

comprised of various parishes in or near the Acadiana Region. 

1



4. To approve the quote from S&V Services in the amount of $5,750.00 to replace two auto switchover 

vacuum regulators, two mounting kit assemblies with heaters and to calibrate the chlorine system at 

the Water Treatment Plant. 

5. To approve the quotation from Frank Harrison Asphalt Paving in the amount of $13,466.00 for a 

partial overlay of the intersection of E. Vermilion and N. St. Valerie. 

6. To ratify the purchase of regulator at a cost of $34,000.00 for the Pete Noel Electrical Substation. 

7. To approve the following relative the the Airport Rehabilitation of the T-Hanger Taxilanes and Apron 

Areas Project: 

a.  Plan change number 3 which reflects a decrease of $94,166.79 and adjusts the contract time. 

b.  Partial Payment number 3 in the amount of $17,809.40 payable to Glenn Lege Construction, LLC. 

c.  A resolution of acceptance authorizing the Mayor to execute an act of acceptance. 

8. To approve payment of partial payment number 5 in the amount of $205,429.01 payable to Shaw 

Construction Services, LLC relative to the LCDBG Sewer System Rehabilitation project. 

9. To approve Change order number 1 to adjust contract time by 48 days due to inclement weather days 

for the LCDBG Sewer System Rehabilitation project. 

10. To approve payment of partial payment number 2 in the amount of $95,301.59 payable to Southern 

Constructors, LLC relative to the Downtown Abbeville Streetscaping project. 

11. Discussion with the property owner of 500 Second Street,  or their designee, pertaining to the 

repairing or removal of front porch roof structure and the removal of the rear walkway and to authorize 

action if necessary. 

12. Discussion with the property owner of 637 Sweet Lane, or their designee, pertaining to the 

condemnation of two structures and the camper and to authorize action if necessary. 

13. To consider the proposal offered by Breaux's Backhoe in the amount of $12,500.00 to abate the 

asbestos, demolish the structure, remove all tall grass, heavy brush and fallen trees and clean and 

level the lot at 805 S. Guegnon Street. 

14. To approve the quote in the amount of $11,000.00 to repair the piling of the bridge on S. 

Hollingsworth. 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. None. 

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS AND UPDATES 

1.        Engineers  

2.        Attorney 

3.        Public Works Director 

4.        Parks and Recreation Coordinator. 

5.        Mayor 

6.        Police Chief 

7.        Fire Chief 

TOPICS FOR DISCUSSION 

1.        Council Members 

ADJOURN 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, 

if you need special assistance, please contact 
Mayor Roslyn White's office at 337-893-8550, 
describing the assistance that is necessary. 

2



1  

City of Abbeville 

Committee Meeting 

December 20, 2022 

 
 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met for a committee meeting on December 20, 

2022 at 5:20 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North 

State Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Roslyn R. White, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members Carlton Campbell, Terry Broussard, Brady 

 Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Tony 

   Hardy 

 

Members Absent: None 

 
 

Also Present: Bart Broussard, City Attorney 

 Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

 Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

 Rick Putnam, City Judge 

 Jeremiah Bolden, City Marshal 

 Mona Hebert, City Court retired employee 

 Reggie Hilts, City Marshal Deputy  
 

Mayor White stated that we are here for an Ordinance Committee meeting chaired by 

Councilman Tony Hardy.  She asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda 

item.  There were none.  She turned the floor over to Councilman Hardy. 

 

Councilman Hardy stated the item for the Ordinance Committee to consider is an ordinance 

dealing with fines for code violations.  Councilman Broussard had requested this item to be on 

the agenda so Councilman Hardy asked Councilman Broussard to explain the request. 

 

Councilman Broussard there have been some property violations that have been going on for 

decades so the City Attorney has suggested that we modify our ordinance to include a financial 

penalty for violations.  Mayor White stated that we did something like this for campers recently.  

Councilman Broussard is trying to address junk on property.  She pulled up the ordinance from 

Tangipahoa Parish and they have a per day penalty for junk properties.  That penalty would be 

applied as a lien to the property.  Councilman Broussard would like the City Attorney to work 

on a draft of this in January.  He would like to see a penalty of $100 per day accessed to the 

property owner.  We are having issues because contractors do not want to go on property to 

clean it up because they fear their safety.  Councilman Campbell thought the $100 per day is 

excessive.  Bart Broussard stated the case that brought this about was not connected to utilities.  

The ordinance states that you are required to be connected to utilities however there is no penalty 

in the penalty section.   

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to authorize 

the City Attorney to research the proposed ordinance and to make recommendations to the City 

Council.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor White declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Roslyn R. White 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

3



1  

City of Abbeville 

Committee Meeting 

February 7, 2023 

 
 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met for a committee meeting on February 7, 

2023 at 5:15 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North 

State Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Roslyn R. White, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members Carlton Campbell, Terry Broussard, Brady 

 Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Tony 

 Hardy 

 

Members Absent: None 

 
 

Also Present: Bart Broussard, City Attorney 

 Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

 Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

 Stewart Head, Electric Department Superintendent 

 Charlene Becket, Main Street Manager 

 Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

 Gene Sellers, Engineer  
 

Mayor White stated that we are here for an Ordinance Committee meeting chaired by 

Councilman Tony Hardy.  She asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda 

item.  There were none.  She turned the floor over to Councilman Hardy. 

 

Councilman Hardy stated the first item is to discuss a proposed ordinance to repeal and re-enact 

the liquor permit ordinance.  Mayor White explained that our old ordinance is very complex so 

we want to make it more business friendly.  It is currently fourteen pages long.  It is a photocopy 

of the State law.  We did some research and we have looked at what other communities do and 

there is some work that we can do be a lot more business friendly and a lot less complicated.  It 

will reference State law and they will have to submit an affidavit stating that they are going to 

apply for a State license and then bring the State license back when they have it.  Right now, we 

have them submit fingerprint cards and give us all sorts of information that we do absolutely 

nothing with.  It is a waste of resources and time.  We also require them to get signatures of 

surrounding property owners.  It is her suggestion that we do away with that process.  No other 

communities do that and it is very cumbersome.  Another thing that is in our ordinance is that 

we require waiters and waitresses to get a bar card from the City and they have to have a 

different bar card for every business they were employed.  This is cumbersome.  We have no way 

of policing this and we do not go back and inspect it.  They have to have one from the State and 

the State does police it.  We don’t necessarily need to take action on this ordinance tonight.  Look 

it over and let us know.  Councilman Touchet stated that he was in favor of all things discussed 

tonight pertaining to this ordinance.  If this is something that no one else is doing then we should 

not continue to do this.  This ordinance has caused a lot of heartache for a lot of people.  Mayor 

White stated to submit any changes to Rani and she and Bart can look over those and make 

changes.  Councilman Touchet stated that he was ready to move on this. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to recommend 

to the City Council at their regular meeting scheduled for March 7, 2023 to adopt an ordinance 

repealing and re-enacting the liquor permit ordinance.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Councilman Hardy stated that the next item is a discussion regarding a proposed ordinance to 

permit street legal golf carts on City streets.  There was no discussion regarding the proposed 

ordinance. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to recommend 

to the City Council at their regular meeting scheduled for March 7, 2023 to adopt an ordinance 

pertaining to the permitting of street legal golf carts on City streets.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Councilman Hardy read the third item on the agenda.  It was a discussion regarding an 

4



2  

ordinance to increase the Chief of Police’s salary.  Since Councilman Touchet had requested 

this to be on the agenda, Councilman Hardy turned the floor over to Councilman Touchet.  

Councilman Touchet stated that in every organization you look to see where there are inequities.  

You look for opportunities to fix those.  We have elevated the salary of the Director of Public 

Works and Parks by $25,000 annually because of the additional duties.  The Chief of Police in 

Scott is making $92,663 and our Chief only makes $65,000.  We need to fix that.  He is the one 

who is directly responsible for the safety of our citizens.  There are other positions that need to 

fixed as well.  The Chief of Police in Youngsville makes $86,000, New Iberia makes $85,000, 

Broussard makes $85,000 and Crowley $75,000.    We need to bring our Police Chief’s salary 

up to $85,000.  That would be a little more than $700 for each of the 26 pay periods per year.  

We would then have a competitive salary.  Councilman Campbell asked if the $85,000 included 

the State supplemental pay.  Councilman Touchet stated it does not.  That would be an additional 

$7,200.  That comes from the State and not the City.  Councilman Broussard asked where the 

raise would be paid from.  Councilman Touchet stated from General Fund.  Mayor White added 

that it would be paid from General Fund however General Fund is ultimately funded by our 

Utility System Fund.  The General Fund already operates at a deficit.  The Chief is well worth it 

but we took this job knowing what our salary would be.  We committed to that.  There are some 

inequities and it is an underpaid position.  She does not feel that moving it up to $85,000 is 

feasible.  We don’t have the same income as Scott, Youngsville and Broussard.  We don’t have 

the same type of growth as they do either.  She has concerns moving it to that number and would 

feel better about moving it to $75,000.  That is her opinion.  The highest paid lieutenant in the 

department is making $71,000.  The highest lieutenant has been with the department for several 

years.  The decision is up to the Council and we will have to amend the budget if we take this 

action.  Councilwoman Broussard stated that she respects what the Mayor is saying and this is 

no reflection on the Chief.  She agrees with the $75,000.  Councilman Touchet stated that Chief 

Hardy gets more calls than any other municipalities. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to recommend 

to the City Council at their regular meeting scheduled for March 7, 2023 to adopt an ordinance 

to increase the Police Chief’s annual salary to $85,000.  The motion was put to a vote and the 

vote thereon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  3 (Campbell, B. Broussard, Touchet) 

 NAYS: 1 (T. Broussard) 

 ABSENT: 0 

 ABSTAIN: 1(Hardy) 

Therefore, the motion carried. 

 

Councilman Hardy read the final item.  It was to consider an ordinance to amend Section 15.5-

29 (c), Location of trash containers, exceptions, to designate the City as the governing body that 

determines variances regarding household garbage containers within the City limits.  Mayor 

White stated that this request came from the Police Jury.  Currently the Police Jury has to grant 

variances for this.  This would change it so that the variance would be granted by the City.  

Anyone needing to leave their container at the roadside would have to come to the City for that. 

 

-04 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to 

recommend to the City Council at their regular meeting scheduled for March 7, 2023, to adopt 

an ordinance to amend Section 15.5-29 (c), Location of trash containers, exceptions, to designate 

the City as the governing body that determines variances regarding household garbage containers 

within the City limits.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor White declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Roslyn R. White 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

 

 

     

5



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Special Meeting 

January 17, 2023 

 

The Mayor and City Council of the City of Abbeville met in special session on January 17, 2023 at 

5:00 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North State 

Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Carlton Campbell, Brady Broussard, Jr., Terry 

Broussard, Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Tony Hardy   

 

Member Absent: Mayor Roslyn R. White 

 

 

Also, Present:   Bart Broussard, City Attorney 

Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

    Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

         

Councilman Touchet called the special City Council meeting to order.  He stated that we are here 

one item which is a public hearing and discussion with the property owner of 1602 Timber Trail, 

or their designee, relative to the City Code violations of Section 6-7, No Utilities, and Section 11-

9, Occupying a camper, travel trailer and/or motor home as a residence and to authorize action 

if necessary.  Councilman Touchet asked if there were any comments from the public on any 

agenda item prior to action.  There were none.  Councilman Touchet turned the floor over to 

Councilman Broussard since this property is in his district. 

 

1602 Timber Trail – the property owner, Ms. Dupuis, was present.  Councilman Broussard stated 

that the hearing was called because of the history of activity that violates City ordinances.  The 

mobile home that was on the property burned and was removed but then a camper was put on 

site.  Living in a camper and running a generator are against City ordinances.  Recently the 

Abbeville Police Department was there and arrested someone at that location a few months ago 

and went back last week because a generator was running.  Ms. Dupuis, the property owner 

stated that they will have the camper off of the property by Friday.  She does not live there. She 

will call the City once the camper is gone.  Councilman Broussard thanked Ms. Dupuis for coming.  

No action was needed at this time as Ms. Dupuis stated the camper will be removed on Friday. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Councilman Touchet declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Francis Touchet, Jr. 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor Pro-Tem 

 

6



City of Abbeville 

   Regular Meeting 

December 20, 2022 

 
The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on December 20, 2022 at 

5:30 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State 

Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Roslyn R. White, Mayor, presiding. 

 
Members Present: Council Members, Carlton Campbell, Terry Broussard, Brady 

    Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Tony 
    Hardy 

 
Members Absent: None 

 
Also, Present: Bart Broussard, City Attorney  

 Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief  

 Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

 Ann Hardy, Municipal Employees Civil Service Director of Personnel 

 Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

   Gene Sellers, Engineer 

   Janis Fabre, Sellers & Associates 

  Charles Dill, Abbeville Planning Commission 

  Elaine Dill, Municipal Employees Civil Service Board 

  Byron Dozier, QSA-Parks and Recreation Coordinator 

  Rick Putnam, City Judge 

  Jeremiah Bolden, City Marshal 

  Reggie Hilts, City Marshal Deputy 

 Mona Hebert, Retired City Court Employee and her family   

members 

  Carl Turnley, President of Kaptel 

  Kimberly Bessard, Director of Boys and Girls Club, Abbeville 

  Felton Hogan and Donavan Davis, Gun Buy Back program 

   

Mayor White asked Marshal Bolden to lead those assembled in prayer. Mayor White asked Ms. 

Mona Hebert to lead the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Mayor White asked if there were any public comments from the audience on any agenda item 

prior to action.  Chief Hardy stated that he is opposed to the four-way stop sign that is proposed 

tonight at the intersection of Michael and Bernadette.  There is a stop sign one block away and 

he feels like it would be a hinderance to most of the neighbors.  If there is someone speeding in 

the neighborhood all they have to do is call us and we will handle it. Mayor White asked that we 

keep agenda item comments limited to 3 minutes and any presentations to 7 minutes in order to 

move the meeting along.   

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve the 

job description, new pay range and classification of Director of Public Works and Parks.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor White and the City Council recognized Ms. Mona Hebert who has retired after serving 54 

years with the City of Abbeville.  She is the longest serving employee in the City’s history.  She was 

an employee at City Court and served with many administrations and City Judges.  They presented 

7



a proclamation and a plaque to Ms. Hebert. 

 

Mr. Carl Turnley provided an update of their services in Abbeville.  They have been serving 

Vermilion Parish for 70 years and they are committed to staying here.  They are a local company. 

They will provide wi-fi to Magdalen Square at no cost.  It will be with filtered content.  His staff 

has already completed a site survey at Comeaux Park to provide wi-fi for the baseball 

tournaments.  All they will need is a cooled building for the equipment.  The temperature cannot 

exceed 120 degrees.  Mayor White asked Carl to get with Chris to locate a building on the premises 

that would work.  Mr. Turnley stated they are working on expanding their fiber service south of 

downtown and we hope to have that in place in 12-18 months.  Mayor White stated that Kaptel 

has been a good provider to the City of Abbeville and she asked Bart to look into the legality of 

Kaptel donating the wi-fi service to the City at Magdalen Square. 

 

Ms. Kimberly Bessard stated that she is the new director of the Boys and Girls Club in Abbeville.  

Mr. Brian Ford has moved into another position with the organization.  The Boys and Girls Club 

offers their after-school program 3 PM to 7 PM Monday through Friday and in the Summer from 

10 AM to 5:00 PM.  They provide the service to the kids that need them the most.  They are one 

of seven locations in Acadiana.  She is wanting to the grow the club. 

 

Mr. Brac Salyer, with LDWF was scheduled to be on the agenda to discuss the recent addition of 

980 quarter-pound channel catfish to the LaFitte Park pond but he was not at the meeting.  

Councilman Broussard provided the update. 

 

Mr. Felton Hogan and Mr. Donavan Davis discussed their gun buy back program.  This is a public 

safety initiative.  They did one on August 6, 2022 in New Iberia and they picked up 25 guns.  They 

also did one in Jeanerette and are planning one in Franklin.  They go out and get churches involved 

and get the funds from them.  You can turn in the gun anonymously.  The guns are then turned 

into the police department for ballistic testing and destruction.  They don’t want uniformed 

officers as security as it is an anonymous program.  The gun has to be working.  They will pay up 

to $300 depending on the caliber.  They have a whole program with speakers and food.  They will 

get the local community involved.  They would like to have one in Abbeville on February 25, 2023.  

Chief Hardy stated that he was ok with this.  Mayor White asked Mr. Hogan and Mr. Davis to keep 

Chief Hardy in the loop. 

 

-02 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve the 

November 2022 budget to actual report.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to increase the capital 

outlay line item for each Council Member in the Sales Tax Fund from $6,000 each to $10,000 each 

for the 2023 fiscal year.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Councilman Touchet asked for a clarification of what capital outlay funds could be used for.  In 

the past he has used his funds to pay to QSA for registration of children to play ball.  He has also 

given funds to the Police Department to award to officers who have done outstanding work during 

Chief Spearman’s term.  He asked if these were correct use of those funds.  Mayor White stated 

that we were not doing it correctly in the past.  Sales tax is supposed to be used for capital outlay 

improvements.  It is supposed to be used for things of longevity of more than one year.  Sales tax 

is what we call our discretionary funds but it is actually capital outlay.  The proposition clearly 

states what sales tax dollars can be used for.  Councilman Touchet stated that he has become 

accustomed to using these funds to help the children in the community.  All of his funds last year 

were put into Comeaux Park.  He wants to use his funds to help with registration for children and 

8



other things like that in the park.  He paid for bases at the park.  Was that allowed?  Mayor White 

answered yes it was a purchase of a new thing and would be allowed.  Councilwoman Broussard 

stated that they all sponsored children but we all paid that from our own personal funds because 

we were told we could not use our City funds.  We did not use our discretionary funds.  Mayor 

White and Councilman Campbell agreed that they used their own personal funds and not City 

funds.  Mayor White added that we were advised not to use the City funds during a meeting and 

Mr. Gene Sellers ended up paying for most of entries for the children.  Mayor White stated that 

she distributed the information to the Council so they will know what they can legally spend their 

capital outlay funds on and that any item costing over $5,000 has to be brought before the City 

Council to vote on.  That rule is for anyone requesting to spend over $5,000, not just the Mayor 

and City Council. 

 

-04 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to enter into a 

public hearing for public comments on the following two proposed ordinances: 1) To set the four 

election districts and their geographical area of the City Council in accordance with the 2020 

census within the City of Abbeville and 2) To adopt the 2023 budget and amend the 2022 budget.  

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Public Hearing 

 

Mayor White stated that we had a public hearing at the November 15, 2022 Committee meeting 

and another public hearing at the December 6, 2022 regular meeting to receive comments 

pertaining to the reapportionment plan that was proposed after the 2020 census.  It was our 

consultant’s recommendation that we keep the election districts the same since the change was 

minimal and there are some questions about the validity of the accuracy of the 2020 census.  

There were no other comments from the public. 

 

Mayor White stated that the 2023 budget was presented at the December 5, 2022 Committee 

meeting in detail.  Councilman Touchet stated that public safety is of upmost importance.  We 

have increased the salary of each Police Department employee, across the board, by $13,340 

annually.  We will need to watch the budget and any big-ticket items will have to come to the City 

Council for approval to make sure we have the finances to expend on that.  There were no other 

comments. 

 

-05 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to reconvene 

the regular meeting from public hearing.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Campbell/T. Broussard 

Ordinance 22-12 

 

An ordinance to set the four election districts and their geographical area of the City Council in 

accordance with the 2020 census within the City of Abbeville. 

 

The motion was put to a vote and the vote thereon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  5(Campbell, T. Broussard, B. Broussard, Touchet, Hardy) 

 NAYS:  0 

 ABSENT: 0 

 ABSTAIN: 0 

Therefore, the ordinance was adopted unanimously. 

 

 

9



Touchet/Hardy 

Ordinance 22-13 

 

An ordinance to adopt the 2023 budget and to amend the 2022 budget. 

 

The motion was put to a vote and the vote thereon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  5(Campbell, T. Broussard, B. Broussard, Touchet, Hardy) 

 NAYS:  0 

 ABSENT: 0 

 ABSTAIN: 0 

Therefore, the ordinance was adopted unanimously. 

 

-06 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to table the request to 

change the two-way stop sign at the intersection of Michael and Bernadette to a four-way stop 

sign because Chief Hardy is opposed to it.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-07 introduced by Ms. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to table any 

action for the cleanup remediation permit for 1100 Charity Street in order to obtain additional 

information.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-08 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve payment 

of partial payment number 3 payable to Shaw Construction Services in the amount of $65,829.57 

for the LCDBG Sewer Rehabilitation Project.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Touchet/Campbell 

Resolution R22-32 

 

A resolution to set the holiday schedule for 2023. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Gene Sellers, Engineer 

- Discussed the upcoming Downtown Sidewalk project.  They will begin on January 9, 2023 and 

hope to be completed by July 7, 2023. 

 

Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

- Thanked the Council for approving his new job description. 

- Discussed the tree line at the airport 

- He is working on the problem on Pearl Street. 

- Is working on bringing water to the Fire Training Tower to be built by the Vermilion Parish 

Police Jury.  That is on Port Street.  Our firemen will be allowed to use it. 

- The are working on the ADA compliance on three fields in the middle first and will take care 

of the rest of fields after that. 

- The Water plant is ready for the upcoming freeze. 

 

Byron Dozier, Parks and Recreation Coordinator 

- Basketball is underway. 

- Councilman Campbell asked Byron to look at bringing tournaments to Williams Park. 

 

Mayor Roslyn White 

- Wished everyone Happy Holidays. 

10



- We are anticipating three days of freezing temperatures.  We had a meeting of the staff and 

are as prepared as we can be.  She hopes the people that live in Abbeville are too.  Please 

check your batteries and call City Hall to turn your water off. 

 

Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

- Thanked the Mayor and City Council for the adequate budget for the Police Department.  He 

is planning to begin recruiting with the new $40,000 annual beginning salary.  He will also 

promote benefits. 

- Wished everyone a Merry Christmas. 

 

Jude Mire, Police Chief 

- The three recruits have all passed the rookie school and will begin working this week. 

- All the fire trucks now have Norcan. 

 

Councilman Tony Hardy 

- Wished everyone  Merry Christmas and Happy New Year. 

 

Councilman Francis Touchet, Jr. 

- Congratulated the Vermilion Catholic Eagles for making it to the State Championship. 

- Recognized and commended Chief Mike Hardy who patrolled so that his staff could enjoy their 

Christmas Party.  He also gave rewards to the officers.  It was a great example of leadership. 

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. 

- Wished everyone a Merry Christmas. 

- Please do not run your water during the freeze.  Call City Hall to have your water shut off.  

That way your utility bill will be lower. 

 

Councilwoman Terry Broussard 

- Wished everyone a Merry Christmas and thanked everyone for coming to the meeting.  Please 

be safe and love your family. 

 

Councilman Carlton Campbell. 

- Wished everyone a happy and safe holiday. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor White declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Roslyn R. White 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11



City of Abbeville 

   Regular Meeting 

January 17, 2023 

 
The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on January 17, 2023 at 5:30 

P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State Street, 

Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem, presiding. 

 
Members Present:    Council Members, Carlton Campbell, Brady Broussard, Jr., 
    Terry Broussard, Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Tony 
    Hardy 

 
Members Absent: Mayor Roslyn R. White 

 
Also, Present: Bart Broussard, City Attorney  

 Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

 Kelly Mire, Assistant Fire Chief  

 Chris Gautreaux, Director of Public Works & Parks 

 Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

   Kim Touchet, Engineer 

  Byron Dozier, Parks and Recreation Coordinator, QSA 

 Members of the Louisiana Cattle Festival: Karen Guilbeau,  

  Victoria Bourque, Marcella Davis and Queens 

  Joey Hebert, former superintendent of VPSB 

     

Councilman Touchet Councilwoman Terry Broussard to lead those assembled in prayer. 

C o u n c i l m a n  T o u c h e t  asked Councilman Carlton Campbell to lead the assembly in the 

Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to amend the agenda 

to remove the two executive sessions at the end of the meeting because they are not needed 

and to add Mr. Joey Hebert to presentations for a donation of artwork to the city.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

Councilman Touchet asked if there were any public comments from the audience on any agenda 

item prior to action.  There were none.  Councilman Touchet asked that the presentations be 

limited to 3 to 5 minutes. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to ratify the 

appointment of Dwayne Schexnider to the position of Police Officer with the Abbeville Police 

Department.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mrs. Victoria Bourque introduced the Louisiana Cattle Festival President Ms. Karen Guilbeau.  Ms. 

Bourque was recently elected to the position of Vice-President with the organization.  They are 

very passionate about the Cattle Festival.  Ms. Guilbeau stated that she is excited to serve at the 

73rd president.  She has been involved in the Cattle Festival for 20 years.  She introduced the 

queens.  The queens are our walking billboards about the festival.  Ms. Bourque stated their goal 

is to move the festival back downtown and they have met with Mayor White a few times.  Because 

of the streetscape project, the festival may not be in the traditional downtown area.  They are 

excited to bring community to the festival and to have new innovative ideas while still staying 

true to the traditions that everyone knows and loves.  We have had a beautiful response from the 

12



public especially cattle producers.  We are wanting to get the cattle industry more involved.  The 

organization wants to do whatever they can to make Abbeville shine.  Tourism is very important 

to them.   

 

Ms. E. J. Berry had requested to be on the agenda to introduce Sharecare USA but she was not at 

the meeting. 

 

Mr. Joey Hebert stated that two years ago he was passing around the Square and it was in the 

fall.  As he passed, he glanced and there was an eerie light because of the tropical depression.  It 

was about 7:00 AM in the morning and it caught his attention as an amateur photographer.  He 

made another block around the Square and got in the road and took several pictures.  He 

presented the Council with a beautiful framed photograph that he took that morning of Concord 

Street facing the Courthouse.   

 

-03 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to ratify bills 

paid in the month of December 2022.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Chris Gautreaux updated the City Council on the proposal to lease City vehicles from Enterprise.  

They will be leasing 13 vehicles for approximately $12,735 per month.  This will include a 

maintenance agreement plan.  This is a 60-month lease.  May take two to three years for us to 

see the benefit of the program.  We will save a lot of money in vehicle maintenance.   

 

-04 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to authorize 

Chris to proceed with the Enterprise vehicle lease and to ratify the Mayor’s signature on all 

documents.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Councilman Touchet began a discussion regarding the annual 2% raise for the Abbeville Police 

Department officers.  In 2019 we froze the 2% because they received a substantial raise.  We just 

implemented a $13,340 annual raise for all police department personnel for 2023 so he suggested 

that we freeze the annual 2% raise to them because of the $13,340 raise that was granted for 

2023.  We will give the 2% again next year to them. 

 

-05 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to not grant an 

additional 2% to the Abbeville Police Department Officers on top of the new raise for 2023 for 

this year.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-06 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to enter into a 

public hearing to receive comments pertaining to the adoption of an ordinance to address Section 

6-7 (a) (3) – Prohibited Activities, Penalties, to add a fine.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Public Hearing 

 

Councilman Broussard stated that we have gone through the process with the Ordinance 

Committee to put fines on those who live in dilapidated structures without utilities.  The City can 

turn off utilities to dilapidated structures.  That has not always resulted in someone not living in 

that structure.  So, we hope this will strengthen that.   The fees are $100.00 per day as a penalty.  

Bart stated that this is about properties that have continuous problems and have been through 

numerous hearings.  The penalty would be implemented after a hearing through the proper 

channels.  This fee would apply to the property owners.  Councilwoman Broussard thought the 

$100.00 per day fine is high.  Councilman Campbell thought that $50.00 per day would be more 

appropriate.  Bart stated that the fine is for extreme situations.  He only knows of one case that 

13



this will apply to right now. 

 

-07 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to reconvene 

the regular meeting from public hearing.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

The original ordinance as presented for adoption included the $100.00 per day fine.  This was the 

recommendation of the ordinance committee at their meeting on 1/3/23.  Councilman Campbell 

wanted to reduce that fee to $50.00 per day so the following motion was made. 

 

-08 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to reduce the per 

day fine for the ordinance from $100.00 per day to $50.00 per day.  The motion was put to a vote 

and the vote thereupon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  3(Campbell, T. Broussard, Hardy) 

 NAYS:  2(B. Broussard, Touchet) 

 ABSENT: 0 

 ABSTAIN: 0 

Therefore, the motion carried. 

 

Campbell/Hardy 

Ordinance 23-01 

 

An ordinance to address Section 6-7 (a) (3) – Prohibited Activities, Penalties, to add a fine of 

$50.00 per day. 

 

The motion was put to a vote and the vote thereupon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  5(Campbell, T. Broussard, B. Broussard, Touchet, Hardy) 

 NAYS:  0 

 ABSENT: 0 

 ABSTAIN: 0 

Therefore, the ordinance was adopted unanimously. 

 

-09 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to authorize the 

Mayor to execute the following contracts with Darnall, Sikes & Frederick:  The audit engagement 

letter for the annual audit for the fiscal year ended 12/31/2022, the agreed upon procedures 

(AUP) letter for the annual audit of AUPs and the consulting engagement letter for years 2023 

and 2024.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-10 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to table the 

approval of payment of a partial payment relative to the LCDBG Sewer System Rehabilitation 

project since Mr. Gene Sellers was not at the meeting.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-11 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to approve the 

cost of $5,000 per day plus materials for Bihm Construction to complete a sewer repair at Leblanc 

and Maude.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-12 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to authorize the Fire 

Chief to apply for a 2023 grant to purchase a new aerial truck and if the grant is awarded, to 

allocate a City match in the amount of $400,000 in the 2025 annual budget.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

 

14



Bart Broussard stated that he will email a draft of the street legal golf cart ordinance to everyone 

and it will be on the February 7, 2023 committee meeting for consideration. 

 

-13 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to authorize the City 

Attorney to proceed with the draft of an ordinance to permit street legal golf carts on City streets.  

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-14 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to award the 

contract to tear down the structure and clear the lot at 1006 Franks Alley to the lowest bidder, 

Ticket Services in the amount of $2,800.00.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Chris Gautreaux, Public Works and Parks Director 

- Finished cleaning up on Fairmont. 

- Discussed the cleanup at McKinley Scott Park for the MLK Day Celebration. 

- Working on handicapped accessibility at Comeaux Park.  Councilwoman Broussard asked him 

to work on handicapped accessibility at McKinley Scott Park too especially for access to the 

court. 

 

Byron Dozier, Parks and Recreation Coordinator, QSA 

- They are ending the regular season of basketball. 

- Will have an All-Star tournament on 2/3-2/5 for basketball.  There will also be a 10-year-old 

regional on 3/10-3/12. 

- He is still adding baseball tournaments to the calendar. 

- He is in the process of getting contracts worked out for field usage. 

- He spoke with the high school coaches to coordinate fields and will speak with them about 

concessions.  Councilman Touchet asked Byron to keep Chris Gautreaux in the loop. 

 

Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

- Ran only 16 medicals in the last two weeks.  We would have normally ran about 40. 

- Last Wednesday at the Police Jury Committee meeting, Global Medical and Acadian 

Ambulance were there to speak.  The Police Jury voted 7 to 4 to not allow another ambulance 

service in the parish.  They have to wait 18 more months before they can try again.  He is 

trying to get some numbers to show the City Council what they have been dealing with for so 

long.  One of the big arguments from Juror Poche’ is that there were no complaints at any of 

the committee meetings about Acadian.  Chief Mire stated that he has been Fire Chief for 9 

years and he did not know there was a Police Jury committee meeting for complaints against 

Acadian Ambulance.  If he doesn’t know that as Fire Chief, then probably most citizens in 

Vermilion Parish did not know they had to lodge their complaints against Acadiana 

Ambulance to the Police Jury.  The Fire Department goes to a lot of calls and those residents 

are wondering where the ambulance is.  His personnel have to deal with the residents’ 

emotions and concerns because the ambulance is not there timely and that is difficult on the 

staff.  He was disappointed in the vote.  He does have a meeting with Acadian Ambulance to 

see if they can work something out.   He wants to work with anybody.   He doesn’t care if there 

are 10 companies in town or 1, the people of Abbeville and Vermilion Parish are what matter.  

Councilman Touchet asked Bart if the City of Abbeville could allow another ambulance in the 

City limits of Abbeville.  Bart stated that we could.  Assistant Fire Chief Kelly Mire suggested 

that Bart check our ordinances to make sure there is no conflict.  We have met with Acadian 

Ambulance and we still end up in the same spot.  He is not here to push Global Medical or 

Acadiana Ambulance.  He is here for the people of Abbeville.  We want the people to be taken 

care of like they do.  We don’t want to used as a crutch anymore by Acadian Ambulance. 

 

15



 

 

Councilman Carlton Campbell 

- Requested Bart to research the liability and legality of the City installing speed bumps in a 

subdivision. 

 

Councilwoman Terry Broussard 

- Thanked Chris and the employees for what they did to prepare for the MLK Day Celebration 

and thanked Vermilion Outreach for going above and beyond in the community.   

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. 

- Thanked the Cattle Festival for being here tonight and for sharing their vision of the festival 

with everyone. 

- Streetscape Phase II has started.  They are working on the north side of the street now.  Until 

the north side is finished, you will not have construction on the south side.  Traffic will continue 

to flow at all times and it will not stop businesses’ entrances or exits.   

 

Councilman Francis Touchet, Jr. 

- Thanked Bart for the work he is doing. 

- Thanked Chris for always stepping up. 

- The Mayor is working on City business tonight.  She is in Baton Rouge trying get funds to the 

City.  That is why she is not at the meeting tonight. 

 

Councilman Tony Hardy 

- He hopes the Cattle Festival will be able to be moved back downtown. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Councilman Touchet declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Francis Touchet, Jr. 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor Pro-Tem 

16



City of Abbeville 

   Regular Meeting 

February 7, 2023 

 
The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on February 7, 2023 at 5:30 

P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State Street, 

Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Roslyn R. White, Mayor, presiding. 

 
Members Present:    Council Members, Carlton Campbell, Brady Broussard, Jr., 
    Terry Broussard, Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Tony 
    Hardy 

 
Members Absent: None 

 
Also, Present: Bart Broussard, City Attorney  

 Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

 Kelly Mire, Assistant Fire Chief  

 Stewart Head, Electrical Department Superintendent 

 Chris Gautreaux, Director of Public Works & Parks 

 Charlene Becket, Main Street Manager 

 Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

   Gene Sellers, Engineer 

  Kim Touchet, Engineer 

  Byron Dozier, Parks and Recreation Coordinator, QSA 

 Nikki Vidos, Vermilion Economic Development 

  Charles Dill, Abbeville Planning Commission 

  Elaine Dill, Municipal Employees Civil Service Board 

  Mother Madge, St. Paul’s Episcopal Church 

  Preston Summers, Candidate for Vermilion Parish Sheriff 

  Mark Creswell, Acadian Ambulance 

     

Mayor White asked Mother Madge to lead those assembled in prayer. M a y o r  W h i t e  asked 

Police Chief Mike Hardy to lead the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to amend the 

agenda to move new business item #10, City attorney update on whether two ambulance 

services can operate in the City limits and if so, what are the next steps to move forward, to the 

last item under new business because the City attorney had to leave briefly.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Mayor White asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item prior to 

action.  There were none.  She asked that comments would be limited to three minutes and to 

limit presentations to ten minutes or less in order to keep the meeting moving forward since it is 

lengthy.   

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to ratify the 

appointment of Rhett Suire, Lance Hobson and John Dunning to the position of Police Officer with 

the Abbeville Police Department pending successful completion of all post-hire assessments.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

17



Ms. Nikki Vidos stated that she would wait for Ms. Victoria Bourque to give the update for 

Vermilion Economic Development at the next meeting.  Ms. Vidos wanted to make sure that the 

Mayor and City Council had received their invitations for the Stakeholder Dinner to be held this 

Thursday at the Erath Community Center.  They will let you know what their board has been 

planning for 2023.  The social hour will begin at 5:30 PM and the program will begin at 6:00 PM.   

 

Mr. Preston Summers is a candidate running for Vermilion Parish Sheriff.  He has been a State 

Trooper for 27 years.  He worked in patrol, the bureau of investigations and the hazardous and 

explosives unit.  He retired as a supervisor for the southwest region of the state that encompasses 

15 parishes.  He immediately went to work as a security manager at LNG exporter in Cameron.  

He is still employed there now.  When he arrived there, he began managing a security force of 

130 personnel.  In 2020 he realized that our liberties were jeopardy and it is essential that local 

enforcements believe in the freedom of the people and a right to be left alone.  He would also like 

to reverse the trend of crime.  Things are worse today than they were 5 or 10 years ago.  He would 

like to implement some things to change that.  It can’t continue to get worse.  We need to put 

crime on the run instead of hard-working people.  He wants to focus patrols in areas and times 

that will result in more deterrence of crime.  He wants to implement merit-based appraisal and 

pay, annual reviews and accountability for not doing your job.  Those who are doing a great job 

and those who are not should not be rewarded across the board.  Law enforcement has to be 

involved with the youth.  He has a vested interest in Abbeville.  He wants to work with Chief Hardy 

to put some effort in the City of Abbeville.  He asked for everyone’s support. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to approve the 

minute from the regular City Council meeting held on December 6, 2022.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-04 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to ratify bills 

paid in the month of January 2023.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-05 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve the 

budget to actual report for the month of December 2022.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-06 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to authorize the 

Mayor to execute the cooperative endeavor agreement between Keep Louisiana Beautiful, Inc. 

and Keep Abbeville Beautiful to fulfill the Beautification Grant application project.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

-07 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to approve 

the quotations to install a 15 X 24 canopy, extend the concrete slab and purchase sod for the 

Blacksmith Shop Annex and to pay the expenses from the Blacksmith Shop Museum account.  

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Campbell/T. Broussard 

Resolution R23-02 

 

A resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an intergovernmental agreement between the City 

of Abbeville and the Vermilion Parish Police Jury for improvements to Margaret Street and Landry 

Drive for a maximum expenditure of $25,000 per street.   

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

18



-08 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to approve 

payment of partial payment estimate #4 payable to Shaw Construction Services, LLC in the 

amount $39,139.81 relative to the LCDBG Sewer System Rehabilitation Project.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

-09 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to approve 

the street name change of Cypress Street to Nicolas Demary Street.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-10 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to ratify the 

Mayor’s execution of a scope and cost proposal submitted to the City of Abbeville by Southern 

Constructors for electrical additions to the Downtown Streetscaping Project and to pay those 

with City Sales Tax Capital Outlay funds since the City’s match is already being paid from those 

funds for the rest of the project.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-11 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to approve the 

quotation from Sunbelt Solomon in the amount of $29,942.00 for a transformer for the Abbeville 

General Hospital upgrade and to pay for that invoice from the City Sales Tax Capital Outlay Fund.  

The motion carried unanimously.   

 

-12 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to award the 

contract to cut and remove all overgrown grass, underbrush and weeds at 805 and 807 Alphonse 

and 701 Graceland Avenue to the low bidder, Ticket Services, in the amount of $4,800.00.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor White announced that the next regular City Council meeting scheduled for February 21, 

2023 will not be held because it falls on Mardi Gras.  We will most likely hold a special City Council 

meeting prior to month end for renewal of insurances that will expire on March 1, 2023. 

 

Mayor White stated that the Lafayette Juvenile Detention Center has complained that their 

invoices for juvenile detention are not being paid timely.  It is because of the process that it must 

go through to get approved.  First it goes to City Court.  Once they approve it, it goes to the Police 

Jury and then they approve it and then it comes to the City of Abbeville and we approve it and it 

gets paid.  This way the Police Jury would pay the entire invoice and then bill us for our portion.  

The City is responsible 100% for the first 72 hours and then after that the City is responsible for 

50%. 

 

-13 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve a change 

in the payment process for juvenile detainees as discussed.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Touchet/B. Broussard 

Resolution R23-03 

 

A resolution to authorize the Mayor to execute an intergovernmental agreement between the 

City of Abbeville and the Vermilion Parish Police Jury to assist with the electrical site lighting work 

for the Fire Training Tower facility to be located at 1105 West Port Street. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

 

19



 

Campbell/Touchet 

Resolution R23-04 

 

A resolution adopting the annual Louisiana Compliance Questionnaire for audit engagements for 

the purpose of auditing the fiscal year ended 12/31/2022. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-14 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to approve 

payment of estimate for partial payment number 1 in the amount of $26,711.55 payable to 

Southern Constructors, LLC relative to the Abbeville Streetscaping Phase II project.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

-15 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to ratify the 

purchase of transformers in the amount of $20,955.00 from Sunbelt Solomon for the EV charging 

station at Ray Chevrolet and to pay the expense from the City Sales Tax Fund.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-16 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to authorize the 

Mayor to execute an agreement to relocate electrical lines along Young A. Broussard Road at a 

material cost of approximately $16,000.00 to be paid from City Sales Tax Fund.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

Councilman Touchet began a discussion on field usage fees for Comeaux Park for schools within 

the City limits.  Abbeville High School does not pay a field usage fee because we use their facilities 

for basketball.  Vermilion Catholic would like to give the City the concessions and to continue 

letting us use their gyms for basketball.  Mr. Byron Dozier stated that the City does not and has 

not used the gyms at Vermilion Catholic.  It might be someone else but it is not QSA.  We had to 

take the catholic school courses and we did not so, we did not use their facilities.  Mayor White 

asked who would work the concessions for Vermilion Catholic’s games.  Chris Gautreaux stated 

that QSA would work it.  Mayor White stated then QSA would get that money.  It is good for the 

schools to use it for free but we need to figure the logistics regarding the concession stands.  Bart 

Broussard stated that letting QSA keep the concession may be beneficial later in restructuring 

their contract and reducing the fees they charge us.  We can evaluate it at that time.  Mayor 

White asked Bart to research the legality too. 

 

-17 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to allow Vermilion 

Catholic to use the fields at Comeaux Park at no charge and to authorize the City attorney to work 

out the logistics in regards to the exchange for concessions and the use of their gyms.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

Councilman Touchet asked the City attorney to provide an update on whether two ambulance 

services can operate in the City limits and if so, what are the next steps to move forward.  Bart 

stated that he reviewed our ordinances dealing with ambulances and there is nothing that he saw 

that require us to be one with the Police Jury.  We have our own set of ordinances that govern it 

within the City limits.  Anyone can apply for permitting pursuant to Section 10-70 of our 

ordinances.  Section 10-73 is a specific ordinance outlining several factors for the Council to 

consider in determining whether to grant that permit.  It is a lengthy process and the Council 

would have the final vote for the permit.  Councilman Touchet asked Bart to email the ordinance 

to them.  He doesn’t understand about Acadian being in compliance 80% of the time.  Who wants 

20



to be on the 20% side?  Councilman Broussard stated that Acadian Ambulance has upgraded their 

fleet on 2/2/23.  There is now a 24-hour a day ambulance in Kaplan, Erath, Abbeville, a daytime 

ambulance in Maurice and a daytime one in Lafayette parish dedicated to Vermilion Parish.  The 

citizens have never had so many ambulances available to them like there are now.     They have 

made a significant investment in vehicles and personnel.  Mr. Mark Creswell added that they also 

added something in New Iberia.  We had received no complaints prior to the public hearing.  After 

the public hearing we tried to address those concerns and they have made significant investments 

here.  Ms. Debbie Spinks stated that she lives on 5th Street.  When her parents were sickly prior to 

their passing, she called Acadian Ambulance four or five times and every time the Fire Department 

was there taking care of her parents and we were waiting for Acadian every time.  You would 

think that at least one out of the four or five times they would have made it on time but they never 

did.  She does not understand how there was never any public reach as far as she knows.  She 

reached out to her Police Juror and asked her if any notifications were sent out or if anyone was 

asked about if we should have more than one ambulance service.  The Police Jury can’t keep up 

with the trash but we will allow them to make life and death decisions for the citizens.  Mayor 

White stated that there were no complaints because the general public did not know they had to 

file their complaints with the Police Jury.  Acadian is working hard to fix some of the issues but 

she does have some concerns over the calls that she has heard over the radio.  The Police Jury 

ordinance states that it is only over the unincorporated areas and municipalities in Vermilion 

Parish that don’t have their own ordinance.  Abbeville does have their own ordinance.  It will be 

up to this Council to see what they want to do.   

 

Kim Touchet, Engineer 

- DOTD sent notice that they found a deficient pile on the bridge at South Hollingsworth so the 

bridge has been closed.  Since the road was recently overlayed, they are getting prices for non-

destructive repairs on the bridge.  We should have quotes by the end of the week.  Mayor 

White stated that DOTD inspected the bridge in 2019 and they notified the City of the 

deficiency in January of 2023. 

 

Chris Gautreaux, Director of Public Works and Parks 

- Some of the new vehicles from the Enterprise lease are starting to come in. 

- They are working on an intersection in Councilman Hardy’s district. 

- They are working on the handicapped accessibility at Comeaux Park. 

- Poured concrete on the 3rd Street sidewalk. 

- Ran a camera by the hospital for a sewer issue.  We found a 4-inch pipe lodged into an 8-inch 

pipe.  We pulled the pipe out and the water is flowing now. 

 

Byron Dozier, Parks and Recreation Coordinator 

- He has updated the calendar that he distributed.  OTC has backed out but two more 

organizations have requested those fields.  He discussed the calendar. 

- American Legion Baseball will host a tournament in July here. 

- Biddy Basketball is a national franchise.  Kaplan plays in a different franchise called Little 

Dribblers.  There are different franchises.  Everything is getting watered down.  Kaplan and 

North Vermilion are branching off.  There are other organizations using Vermilion Catholic this 

year.  QSA did not use the gyms at Vermilion Catholic or at Mount Carmel. 

- Biddy Basketball season is completed.  There was a tournament last week. We will be hosting 

a tournament in March. 

- Baseball registration is under way until March 12, 2023.  Registration is all online. 

 

 

 

21



Mayor Roslyn White 

- Met with Councilman Broussard and DOTD.  The road transfer program agreements are 

moving along.   

- She met with the new representative Jonathan Goudeau and made it clear that our priorities 

are our streets and water plant at this time.  She also has met with Representative Bourriaque 

and Senator Hensgens.  She still has to meet with Representative Miguez.  She wants to make 

sure that they know what projects we are working on so they can go and fight for us during 

the session in April.   

- The National Guard Armory lease has been signed and finalized.  The budget for the design 

phase has been moved up to this year.  That is a $26 million investment by the airport.  We 

hope it will get built out in 2024 or 2025. 

- Thanked the City Council for the new vehicle. 

- They have been issuing citations for littering for unbagged trash. 

 

Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

- He appreciates the offer for the raise. 

- Thanked the Council for the new officers. 

 

Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

- Discussed calls they responded to.  There were 66 calls in the last two weeks. 

 

Councilman Carlton Campbell 

- On October 18, 2022 he mentioned something about a gun buyback.  He is not opposed to 

having a gun buyback in the City.  He was surprised to see that there are some brochures stuck 

on a lot of business windows saying that the gun buyback will be held in Magdalen Square.  

He does not know who gave them permission to have that in Magdalen Square.  Mayor White 

stated that they were refused that location so she would like to see that brochure.  Chief Hardy 

stated that he has been in correspondence with them and they were told they could not use 

Magdalen Square.  They talked about Pleasant Green Church but they turned them down also.  

They called about McKinley Scott too.  Mayor White stated they are looking for a private 

landowner to host it.  Mrs. Lynn is working on a lead. 

- Some houses do not have house numbers so they are difficult to locate.  Mayor White stated 

that our ordinance states that they have to have one.  They are in violation so we can send 

them a letter. 

 

Councilwoman Terry Broussard 

- We have given some raises and public safety is important but she would like us to review our 

budget because we have some really good employees and hopefully in the future, we can look 

at moving them up in pay. 

- There is an Amazon list for the Boys and Girls Club.  Please go to Amazon and purchase a book 

or two for the Club.  This is the Vermilion Reach Group that is doing this.  She is asking everyone 

to support this. 

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. 

- They will be cleaning the Boys and Girls Club this Saturday beginning at 8:00 AM.  Please come 

and help us. 

- Complimented Chief Mire and Stewart Head for their departments’ superb representation for 

the citizens of Abbeville today at the Career on Wheels.   

- Major supermarkets are having their shopping carts rolled away.  That is theft.  He asked Chief 

Hardy to ask his officers to be aware.  Chief Hardy stated that we need to make sure that the 

supermarket will follow through with charges. 

22



 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor White declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Roslyn R. White 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

 

 

 

23



1  

City of Abbeville 

Committee Meeting 

January 3, 2023 

 
 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met for a committee meeting on January 3, 2023 

at 5:20 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North 

State Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Roslyn R. White, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members Carlton Campbell, Brady Broussard, Jr., 

 Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Tony Hardy 

 

Members Absent: Councilwoman Terry Broussard 

 
 

Also Present: Bart Broussard, City Attorney 

 Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

 Marie Buteaux, Water Plant Superintendent 

 Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

 Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

 Gene Sellers, Engineer  
 

Mayor White stated that we are here for an Ordinance Committee meeting chaired by 

Councilman Tony Hardy.  She asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda 

item.  There were none.  She turned the floor over to Councilman Hardy. 

 

Councilman Hardy stated the first item is to discuss an ordinance to address Section 6-7 (a), 

prohibited activities to add a fine to the penalties section. 

 

Mayor White stated we are trying to address people living in condemned or dilapidated 

structures that are not tied into utilities.  This will add a monetary penalty.  We are 

recommending a fine of $100 per day.  Councilman Campbell thought that was too big of a 

penalty so we can discuss that further. The property that we are addressing, specifically, has 

been like this for over two years.  He is using the bathroom in buckets and shaving his head 

outside of his mobile home in front of his neighbors.  He is antagonizing them.   

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to 

recommend to the City Council at their meeting scheduled for January 17, 2023 to adopt an 

ordinance to amend Section 6-7 (a) to add a fine of $100 per day to the penalty section.  The 

motion was put to a vote and the vote thereon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  3(B. Broussard, Touchet, Hardy) 

 NAYS: 1(Campbell) 

 ABSENT 1(T. Broussard) 

 ABSTAIN: 0 

Therefore, the motion carried. 

 

Councilman Hardy stated the next item to discuss is to authorize the City Attorney to research 

and develop an ordinance, by the first meeting of February 2023, pertaining to the permitting of 

street legal golf carts on City Street.  Councilman Touchet asked to put this on the agenda to 

follow suit of what other cities have done.  The driver would have to have a driver’s license, the 

golf cart would have to be street legal containing a horn, light, seat belts, a windshield and all 

the other requirements to make it street legal.  Additionally, this would on be for City streets and 

not state highways.  Bart stated that this can be done.  State statutes prohibit these on state roads.  

He will look at permitting these.  He has reviewed the ordinance in Youngsville and it looks more 

like what we need.  Councilman Campbell asked Bart to also research the motorized mobility 

scooters that some physically challenged people use.  Bart stated that he would draft something 

and bring it back to the Council for approval. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor White declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

 

 

 

24



2  

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Roslyn R. White 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

25



City of Abbeville 

   Regular Meeting 

January 3, 2023 

 
The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on January 3, 2023 at 5:30 

P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State Street, 

Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Roslyn R. White, Mayor, presiding. 

 
Members Present:    Council Members, Carlton Campbell, Brady 
    Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Tony 
    Hardy 

 
Members Absent: Councilwoman Terry Broussard 

 
Also, Present: Bart Broussard, City Attorney  

 Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief  

 Chris Gautreaux, Director of Public Works & Parks 

 Marie Buteaux, Water Plant Superintendent 

 Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

   Gene Sellers, Engineer 

   Charles Dill, Abbeville Planning Commission 

  Elaine Dill, Municipal Employees Civil Service Board 

  Theresa Holmes & Elbert Dawson, MLK Celebration 

  Michael Bertrand, Abbeville General Hospital 

     

Mayor White asked Councilman Carlton Campbell to lead those assembled in prayer. Mayor 

White asked Mr. Michael Bertrand to lead the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to amend the agenda 

to add a resolution to postpone the ordinance directed annual water and sewer increase until 

March 1, 2023 due to the freezing weather and the excessive water use of our customers around 

the Christmas holidays.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor White asked if there were any public comments from the audience on any agenda item 

prior to action.  There were none. Mayor White asked that we keep agenda item comments 

limited to 3 minutes in order to move the meeting along.   

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to ratify the 

appointment of Nicholas Vincent to the position of Police Officer in the Abbeville Police 

Department.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Ms. Theresa Holmes and Mr. Elbert Dawson discussed the upcoming Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. 

Celebration.  The festivities will begin on January 6, 2023 and will continue until MLK Day on 

January 16, 2023.  They will be honoring Mr. Terry Bessard and Ms. Geralyn Thomas.  Mayor 

White asked Ms. Holmes to give the motorcade route to Allie Horton so she can post that route.  

We have not required them to get a permit in the past so they are not required to get a permit 

this year. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve the 

minutes from the regular City Council meeting held on November 15, 2022 and the Committee 

meeting held on December 5, 2022.  The motion carried unanimously. 

26



 

-04 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to approve the 

cleanup remediation permit for 1100 Charity Street.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-05 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to surplus Lieutenant 

Jonathan Touchet’s service weapon so that the Fraternal Order of Police can purchase it at fair 

market value to present to Lieutenant Touchet since he has retired.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-06 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to authorize 

repairs, at a cost of between $8,000 and $10,000, to the spare fire truck for the Abbeville Fire 

Department.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Touchet/Campbell 

Resolution R23-01 

 

A resolution to postpone the ordinance directed 3% annual increase of water and sewer rates until 

March 1, 2023, due to the excess water usage of customers during the hard freeze at the end of 

December 2022. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Gene Sellers, Engineer 

- The sidewalk project will begin on Monday.   

 

Chris Gautreaux, Director of Public Works and Parks 

- He discussed the recent extended freeze.  Many departments worked around the clock 

nonstop.  Marie put together some notes to discuss tonight.  He asked Marie to discuss this.  

Marie presented a graph.  The blue line represents the air temperature, the orange line 

represents the PSI in they system and the grey line is the water tower levels.  Through the 

freeze on December 24th, at 12:00 PM, we maintained a very high PSI in the 60s.  Our tower 

levels were in the 20s.  When the temperature rose above freezing and the pipes defrosted, 

in conjunction with residents running their water, it was too much demand for the system.  

We could not keep up.  As the temperature rose, the pressure came down and the towers 

plummeted.   What limits you losing the water is having an end cap on the system that can 

retain the water.  When you have this much water going out, those service pumps are not 

doing their usual PSI, they are rolling.  You are not pumping against any head.  You have lost 

the head of the tower and you have lost the pressure in the system that is retained when you 

have a closed system.  Councilman Touchet asked Marie to give an overview of the system 

and how water is distributed.  Marie stated that we pump water from the wells.  From the 

wells we go to the clarifier.  From the clarifier we go into filters.  Those filters drain into a 

clear well underneath the water plant.  That water is then pumped to the system.  This 

system provides water to residents, businesses and the water towers.  Mayor White added 

that the towers are what keep the head pressure high.  We always have water in those two 

towers which help to keep the pressure in the system higher.  Within 5 hours we lost both 

towers and almost the entire clear well from open water lines, people bleeding their lines, 

people cooking for Christmas Eve, family over taking baths and we identified as of this date, 

170 water leaks on private property.  This was like a stab victim with a bunch of wounds and 

you are trying to put blood into it.  Until you close all the wounds, you are just pumping 

aimlessly.  We wanted to try and notify the public but the rapid decline of the water pressure 

did not afford us much time.  We have members of our team that went above and beyond.  

27



They gave up their Christmas Eve, Christmas Day and the day after Christmas.  It was an 

unprecedented event.  We prepared as much as we possibly could.  Mr. Gene Sellers stated 

on Christmas morning that he didn’t know.  We have never heard him say that.  It was the 

perfect storm of events.  We called out all of our fire and police to help look for water leaks.  

Marie Buteaux proved to us that she is the right person for the job.  Her and Chris were 

communicating constantly and bringing in Mr. Gene when needed.  Marie and her whole 

team did a great job.  They were working 24-hours a day from 6:00 AM, Thursday until 

Tuesday.  She also recognized Chris Gautreaux, Shirley Bertrand, Mary Rogers, Gene Sellers, 

Alex Boudine, Larry Moore, Jr. and his team, Lee Schexnaider and his team and the City 

Council.  It took the entire team for this event.  We were out of water for only 4 hours and 10 

minutes in four days.  That is remarkable considering the events.  She looked at the CDC 

website and there were 199 public water systems that had boil advisories from being out of 

water due to freezing temperatures.  We lifted ours on Friday.  On Saturday there were still 

63 public water systems still under a boil advisory.  We can’t control Mother Nature.  Marie 

stated that we didn’t start working when the freeze happened.  We were working the day 

before the freeze at 6:00 AM.  We did plan, we filled the towers and we did pump.  We 

normally use 2.1 million gallons of water a day in Abbeville.  We were pumping at a rate of 

3.5 million gallons per day.  She asked Mr. Gene if there would have been any way that we 

could have put out more water.  Mr. Gene stated no.  You put out more than the capacity of 

the plant.  Chris stated that going forward we will inspect the pumps.  Since Jacqulyn tower 

was empty, we had it cleaned and sanitized.  It will most likely be back in service tomorrow 

morning.  In two weeks, we will also clean and sanitize the St. Theresa tower too.  Mayor 

White read through a timeline of events.  The City of Abbeville’s ideal pressure is 63 PSI.  On 

average we pump 2.5 million gallons per day and we use about 2.1 million gallons per day.  

We are rated to produce 3 million gallons per day.  As Marie stated, during the freeze, we 

were pumping at 3.5 million gallons per day and we couldn’t keep up.  We have two water 

towers which hold 500,000 gallons each.  The ground storage at the plant holds 650,000 

gallons.  The clear well hold about 220,000 gallons of water.  At 11:00 PM on Thursday, 

12/22/22, freezing temperatures began.  At 12:01 AM, Friday, 12/23/22, St. Theresa’s water 

tower was at 28.5 feet and the pressure was 64 PSI.  Temperatures stayed at or below 

freezing the entire day.  At midnight on Christmas Eve, 12/24/22, tower level was at 21.9 

and the PSI was 64.  At 11:00 AM, air temperature came up to 32 degrees.  At noon on that 

day, the air temperature was 34 degrees and tower level was at 22.8 feet and the pressure 

was at 62 PSI.  No reason to be alarmed.  At 1:29 PM she received the phone call from 911 

saying low tower alarm at St. Theresa.  That is not an uncommon thing as anytime It drops 

to 20 feet we get that alarm.  Pressure was still 59 PSI.  We sent the team out to look for 

leaks and shut those off.  The operators were monitoring at the plant.  At 4:00 PM, Larry 

Moore, Jr.  isolated St. Theresa tower.  By the time he got there, the water level was at 12.9 

feet and the system pressure was 60 PSI.  The towers do stay pretty much equal.  We lost 7.1 

feet of water in the tower in two and one-half hours with no change in pressure.  We are still 

not overly alarmed.  At 5:00 PM, Jacqulyn Street tower was at 9.2 feet and the system 

pressure was slowly declining at 55 PSI.  The team is still out looking for leaks and shutting 

those off as they are found.  6:25 PM, the water level at Jacqulyn tower was at zero and the 

pressure was at 52 PSI.  We still had good pressure but we had lost the entire tower at 

Jacqulyn.  Now we have Jacqulyn with no water and a small amount in St. Theresa as a 

reserve in case there is a fire.  At 6:49 PM, water pressure dropped to 36 PSI.  If it gets to 20, 

we have to go under a boil advisory.  She got on social media asking the residents to help by 

checking properties within the City and to report those water leaks as soon as possible.  She 

also asked residents to conserve water in order the help rebuild the pressure.   At 7:20 PM, 

the water pressure dropped below 20 PSI.  At 7:25 PM, the clear well was being drained at a 

high rate.  She made the call to allow the pumps to cut off which would temporarily cause 

28



water to be off to preserve the pump system.  If we lose the pumps, we would be in a far 

worse situation for an extended period of time.  At 7:30 PM, there was no water for 

customers.  At 9:45 PM, water was back on to customers at low pressure.  At this point we 

were pulling from the clear well storage at the plant.  The team identified over 40 leaks on 

private property on Saturday.  On Sunday, 12/25/22, at 3:00 AM the system pressure was 21 

PSI and the air temperature was at 25 degrees.  At 8:45 AM air temperatures rose above 

freezing.  At 9:00 AM, the service pumps kicked off.  People were without water while we 

filled the clear well from the ground storage.  The service pumps were back on in 15 minutes.  

The air temperature was 34 degrees. The pressure was low so some people thought we had 

shut the water off.  We continued to produce water the entire time but we couldn’t keep up 

with demand.  That is why people saw little to no pressure.  At 1:35 PM the call was made to 

open the valve from ground storage to try to get more pressure to customers.  This improved 

the pressure to our customers.  With the help of residents and the City team we were able to 

identify and isolate about 100 leaks on Sunday, mostly on private property.  At 6:00 PM, the 

pressure was up to 32 PSI.  Locating the leaks and people stopping to run their water 

because temperatures were above freezing helped to build the pressure back up.    From 

11:04 PM to 12:29 AM, the service pumps stopped to refill the ground storage.  Pressure was 

at 0 PSI during this process.  On Monday, 12/26/22, at 6:00 PM, we were back up to 60 PSI 

with both towers isolated.  On Tuesday, 12/27/22, at 6:45 AM, there was a brief interruption 

of service as the service pumps were switched over.  At 10:00 AM we began refilling the St. 

Theresa tower and Jacqulyn tower was cleaned, inspected and sanitized.  On Wednesday, 

12/28/22 at 7:15 AM we began refilling Jacqulyn tower.  The boil advisory was lifted at 

11:00 AM on Friday, 12/30/22.  Marie stated that this was an unprecedented event.  She has 

never saw the towers fall like that in the 18 years she has been working at the plant.  Chris 

stated that we have all learned from this event and will change things in the future from 

that.  Councilman Broussard stated that the data was there.  The news outlets reported it.  

We were warned a week before the event that Siberian air was heading our way.  People 

should have prepared their home and businesses for this.  Mr. Gene Sellers stated that he 

went to the plant at 6:00 AM on Christmas morning and Marie started explaining how the 

system works.  He admitted that she knows more than he know about the system.  It would 

have been a lot worse if she did not know how the system works.  Marie stated that they 

want to produce the best water that we can in the necessary quantity at the best level.  

People with compromised immune systems are drinking our water.  This is our responsibility.  

Mayor White encouraged each Council member to take a tour of the water plant to learn 

how the system operates.  That will help you get a better understanding of what goes on in 

our water system. 

 

Mayor Roslyn White 

- She is looking forward to 2023 with excitement and energy.  She wants the public to expect 

progress on their roads.  We are working on that.  We will have new businesses coming to 

town and new events coming to downtown.  We will be working towards new technology and 

working with public safety to build trust within the community.   

 

Police Chief Mike Hardy 

- Two juveniles that were shot at 3:00 AM this morning.  We have arrested the suspect and he 

is incarcerated in the juvenile detention center.  

 

Fire Chief Jude Mire 

- Since they have limited the number of medicals they respond to, they are running 60% less. 

 

 

29



Councilman Carlton Campbell 

- Wished everyone a Happy New Year.  Pray for no more freezes. 

 

 

Councilwoman Terry Broussard 

- Although Councilwoman Broussard was not at the meeting, she asked Kathy Faulk to read the 

following:  I would like to take a few minutes to thank you, Mayor, for the way you handled 

your first crisis during the freeze.  You were proactive in your decisions and kept the 

community informed.  You came in on Christmas Eve, Christmas Day and into the next week 

working side by side with the Public Works Director, Water Plant Superintendent, Mr. Gene 

Sellers and the City workers.  Your dedication to the city and this community shows what kind 

of leader you are.  Thank you. 

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. 

- Thanked Police Juror Liz Touchet for attending the meeting tonight.  He wished everyone a 

Happy New Year. 

 

Councilman Francis Touchet, Jr. 

- Wished everyone a Happy New Year. 

 

Councilman Tony Hardy 

- Wished everyone a Happy New Year. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor White declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Roslyn R. White 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

 

 

 

 

30



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Special Meeting 

January 3, 2023 

 

The Mayor and City Council of the City of Abbeville met in special session on January 3, 2023 at 

5:00 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North State 

Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Roslyn R. White, Mayor presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Carlton Campbell, Brady Broussard, Jr., Francis 

Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Tony Hardy   

 

Member Absent: Councilwoman Terry Broussard 

 

 

Also, Present:   Bart Broussard, City Attorney 

Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

    Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

    Gene Sellers, Engineer 

    Liz Touchet, Vermilion Parish Police Juror    

         

Mayor White called the special City Council meeting to order.  She stated that we are here for this 

special meeting in order to conduct a hearing with the property owner of 1418 S. Jefferson Street, 

or their designee, regarding the condemnation of the burnt structure and to address people living 

in campers.  Mayor White asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item 

prior to action.  There were none. 

 

1418 S. Jefferson Street – No one was present to represent the property.  Councilman Broussard 

stated this owner is a persistent ordinance violator.  The property is affecting neighbors and 

businesses near it.  The Vermilion Parish Task Force has arrested drug offenders there.  They do 

not respect the Police Jury ordinance regarding trash pickup.  They have someone living in a 

camper on the property. They are collecting junk cars, appliances and other rubbish in the yard.  

He met with the City Attorney to strengthen our ordinances because of this property.  They have 

not responded to any of the letters from the City.  Mayor White stated that she has passed by 

that property often and it has been an ongoing problem.  We should prosecute them for any and 

all violations that we can.  They are obviously in violation of littering so the Police Chief can cite 

them with littering.  The property owner is Eric Jerome Mouton and he should be ashamed and 

embarrassed by the state of his property.  It is absolutely criminal what is happening on that 

property.  We need to use any means necessary to hold him accountable.  Councilman Broussard 

stated that the Public Works Director has condemned the burnt shed and they are hanging 

blankets around it with a light bulb in it.  Mayor White stated this is also a public nuisance so we 

can contract that out to get the property cleaned and lien his property.  It has gotten progressively 

worse.  Chief Jude Mire stated they have been called there for a structure fire and two trash fires.  

They have run over 40 medicals there.  The property owner has tapped into the electric box for 

power to the shed that burned.  They had wires coming out of the electrical box and running and 

laying on top of the ground to the building.  The Fire Department took the meter to give to the 

City but it is not the City’s meter.  It is Entergy’s meter.  We notified Entergy and they went and 

put a new meter and did not come to the Fire Station to get their meter.  Mayor White asked Chief 

Jude to get the State Fire Marshal involved.  He stated that he would.   

 

31



2 
 

-01 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to authorize 

the City Attorney to work with the tax department and to immediately enforce any and all 

violations and to bid out all necessary remediation for 1418 S. Jefferson Street.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor White declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Roslyn R. White 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



JOB NO.: 9162-04 PAGE 1 OF 3

PROJECT:

OWNER:

CONTRACTOR:

NOTICE TO PROCEED DATE: 01/14/23 to 02/28/23

CONTRACT TIME: 365 253 % TIME USED: 69.32%

CONTRACT PRICE: 1,516,403.10$           % COMPLETE: 32.55%

Item

No. Quantity Unit Price Current Previous Total

1. 1.00               L.S. 20,000.00$       0.00 0.50 0.50

2.
1.00               L.S. 160,000.00$    0.00 0.00 0.00

3.
1.00               L.S. 99,681.00$       0.00 0.00 0.00

4.
1.00               L.S. 200,000.00$    0.00 0.00 0.00

5.
4,040.00       Ln. Ft. 50.00$               310.00 1,300.00 1,610.00

6.

5,475.00       Ln. Ft. 50.00$               0.00 600.00 600.00

7.
260.00          Ln. Ft. 96.15$               75.00 100.00 175.00

8.

80.00             Ln. Ft. 343.75$             0.00 0.00 0.00

9.
1.00               Each 1,800.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

10.
2.00               Each 2,500.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

11.
35.00             Ln. Ft. 142.86$             0.00 0.00 0.00

12.
1.00               Each 3,000.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

13.
1.00               Each 1,500.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

14.
1.00               Each 3,000.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

15.

800.00          Ln. Ft. 62.50$               800.00 0.00 800.00

16.
2.00               Each 1,500.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

17. 1.15               Ton 25,000.00$       0.032 0.192 0.224

18.
2.00               Each 1,750.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

19. 30,000.00    Ln. Ft. 2.00$                 0.00 30,504.00 30,504.00

20. 4.00               Each 3,500.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

21. 10.00             Each 1,800.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

22.

2.00               Each 1,200.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

23.

1.00               Each 1,500.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

24.
1.00               Each 3,500.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

25.
8.00               Each 1,000.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

26.
2.00               Each 1,200.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

27.
50.00             Ln. Ft. 100.00$             0.00 0.00 0.00

28. 30.00             Ln. Ft. 100.00$             0.00 0.00 0.00

29. 10.00             Ln. Ft. 150.00$             0.00 0.00 0.00

30. 10.00             Each 500.00$             0.00 0.00 0.00

31. 1.00               Each 1,500.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

32. 1.00               Each 1,500.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

33. 1.00               Each 500.00$             0.00 0.00 0.00

34. 9.00               Each 1,500.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

35.
5.00               Each 750.00$             0.00 0.00 0.00

36. 20.00             Each 200.00$             0.00 0.00 0.00

37.
25.00             Cu. Yd. 80.00$               0.00 0.00 0.00

38. 179.00          Sq. Yd. 42.00$               0.00 0.00 0.00

39. 23.00             Each 750.00$             0.00 2.00 2.00

-$                       

1,500.00$             

-$                       

Limestone for Embedment and Foundation 

(Type II), -$                       

Bore Hole Patching, -$                       

-$                       

Pipe Connection to Existing Manhole, -$                       

Replace or Install Cleanout (Including 

Excavation and Backfill), -$                       

Service Riser,

Replace or Install Cleanout Cap,

Excavate and Backfill Bore Hole,

CIMJ Fittings, 5,600.00$             

-$                       

-$                       

Replace Service Line (0' - 5' Depth), -$                       

Ductile Iron Wye and Tee Installation, -$                       

Excavation and Backfill for Main Line Point 

Repair (8' - 10' Depth), -$                       

Excavation and Backfill for Service Line 

Point Repair (0' - 5' Depth), -$                       

Excavation and Backfill for Service Line 

Point Repair (5' - 8' Depth), -$                       

Additional Excavation and Backfill for Main 

Line and Service Line Point Repair,

Replace Service Line (5' - 8' Depth), -$                       

Service Line Point Repair, -$                       

Excavation and Backfill for Main Line Point 

Repair (0' - 5' Depth), -$                       

Excavation and Backfill for Main Line Point 

Repair (5' - 8' Depth), -$                       

Plug Service Lines,

ESTIMATE FOR PARTIAL PAYMENT NO. 5

F.Y. 2021 LCDBG Sewer System Rehabilitation

City of Abbeville

Shaw Construction Services, LLC, PO Box 3449, St. Francisville, LA 70775

June 20, 2022 PAYMENT PERIOD:

Mobilization 10,000.00$          

CALENDAR DAYS                 DAYS USED:

TOTAL THIS PERIOD: 493,661.13$                

CONTRACT QUANTITY

Description Amount

BASE BID

Renovation of Pump Station No. 4

 (Loraine Street) -$                       

Electrical for Pump Station No. 4

(Loraine Street), -$                       

Furnish and Install New 250-KW 

Generator at Main Pump Station, -$                       

Furnish and Install 8-Inch PVC Force Main 

(Open Cut), 80,500.00$          

Furnish and Install By Jack or Bore

8-Inch PVC Force Main

(Roads, Driveways), 30,000.00$          

Furnish and Install By Jack or Bore 8-Inch 

PE Force Main (Highway Crossing), 16,826.25$          

Furnish and Install By Jack or Bore

8-Inch PE Force Main (Railroad Crossing 

and Gas Line Crossing) Including

12-Inch Steel Casing, -$                       

Connect 8-Inch PVC Force Main to New 

Manhole, -$                       

Furnish and Install Air Release Valve and 

Box, -$                       

Furnish and Install 6-Inch PVC Force Main 

(Open Cut), -$                       

Main Line Point Repair, -$                       

PVC Wye and Tee Installation,

Furnish and Install 8-Inch Gate Valve and 

Box, -$                       

Connect 6-Inch Force Main to Existing 

Force Main with Fittings, -$                       

Cut, Plug, and Abandon Existing Sewer 

Force Main, -$                       

Smoke Testing, 61,008.00$          

Furnish and Install 6-Inch Gate Valve and 

Box, -$                       

Furnish and Install By Directional Bore 10-

Inch PE Force Main (Vermilion River 

Crossing), 50,000.00$          

Furnish and Install 8" x 10" PE Fitting at 

River Crossing, -$                       

N:\DATA\9162\9162-04 BES\Construction\9162-04 PPE#5
121



JOB NO.: 9162-04 PAGE 2 OF 3

PROJECT:

OWNER:

CONTRACTOR:

NOTICE TO PROCEED DATE: 01/14/23 to 02/28/23

CONTRACT TIME: 365 253 % TIME USED: 69.32%

CONTRACT PRICE: 1,516,403.10$           % COMPLETE: 32.55%

Item

No. Quantity Unit Price Current Previous Total

ESTIMATE FOR PARTIAL PAYMENT NO. 5

F.Y. 2021 LCDBG Sewer System Rehabilitation

City of Abbeville

Shaw Construction Services, LLC, PO Box 3449, St. Francisville, LA 70775

June 20, 2022 PAYMENT PERIOD:

CALENDAR DAYS                 DAYS USED:

TOTAL THIS PERIOD: 493,661.13$                

CONTRACT QUANTITY

Description Amount

40. 50.00             Sq. Yd. 100.00$             0.00 0.00 0.00

41. 15.00             Sq. Yd. 200.00$             0.00 0.00 0.00

42. 10.00             Sq. Yd. 200.00$             0.00 0.00 0.00

43.
5.00               Ln. Ft. 200.00$             0.00 0.00 0.00

44.
50.00             Ln. Ft. 100.00$             0.00 0.00 0.00

45. 10.00             Ln. Ft. 100.00$             0.00 0.00 0.00

46.
233.00          Ton 65.00$               0.000 9.997 9.997

47. 10.00             Cu. Yd. 300.00$             0.00 0.00 0.00

48. 25.00             Cu. Yd. 100.00$             0.00 0.00 0.00

49. 5.00               Cu. Yd. 100.00$             0.00 0.00 0.00

50.
1.00               Each 10,000.00$       0.00 0.00 0.00

51.
1.00               Each 6,000.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

52. 5,000.00       Ln. Ft. 2.00$                 0.00 0.00 0.00

53. 20.00             Ln. Ft. 40.00$               0.00 0.00 0.00

54. 20.00             Ln. Ft. 40.00$               0.00 0.00 0.00

55. 5,000.00       Ln. Ft. 3.00$                 0.00 0.00 0.00

56. 1.00               Each 1,500.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

57. 1.00               Each 1,200.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

58. 1.00               L.S. 1,000.00$         0.00 1.00 1.00

59. 1.00               Each 500.00$             0.00 0.00 0.00

60. 1.00               Each 500.00$             0.00 0.00 0.00

61. 1.00               Each 500.00$             0.00 0.00 0.00

62.
1.00               Each 2,000.00$         0.00 1.00 1.00

63. 4.00               Cu. Yd. 1,000.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

64. 5.00               Cu. Yd. 1,000.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

65. 1.00               Each 500.00$             0.00 0.00 0.00

66.
20.00             Each 500.00$             0.00 0.00 0.00

67. 910.00          Sq. Yd. 35.00$               0.00 0.00 0.00

68.

150.00          Ln. Ft. 40.00$               0.00 0.00 0.00

69. 970.00          Ln. Ft. 16.00$               0.00 60.00 60.00

70.
96.00             Ton 62.50$               0.00 0.00 0.00

71. 25.00             Ln. Ft. 200.00$             0.00 0.00 0.00

72. 2.00               Each 1,500.00$         0.00 1.00 1.00

73. 2.00               Each 8,000.00$         2.00 0.00 2.00

74.
35.00             Ln. Ft. 60.00$               0.00 0.00 0.00

75.
48.00             Ln. Ft. 60.00$               0.00 0.00 0.00

76.
40.00             Ln. Ft. 50.00$               0.00 0.00 0.00

77.
1.00               L.S. 4,000.00$         0.00 0.00 0.00

78.
174.00          Cu. Yd. 65.00$               0.00 0.00 0.00

1.

1.00               L.S. 50,000.00$       0.00 0.00 0.00

2.

1.00               L.S. 20,000.00$       0.00 0.00 0.00

1.
1.00               L.S. (200,000.00)$   0.00 0.00 0.00

2.

1.00               L.S. 145,000.00$    0.00 0.00 0.00

Furnish and Install 175-KW Generator at 

the Main Pump Station, Including New 

Foundation and Fuel Tank) -$                       

ALTERNATE BID NO. 2
Eliminate All Work Required in Base Bid 

Item #4 (Deduct), -$                       

General Borrow

(Truckbed Measurement), -$                       

Renovation of Pump Station No. 30 (Mount 

Carmel), -$                       

ALTERNATE BID NO. 1

Electrical for Pump Station No. 30 (Mount 

Carmel),

-$                       

Furnish and Install 10-Inch Schedule 80 

PVC Drain, -$                       

Clear and Remove Trees and Brush 

Including Root System, -$                       

Dry Suction Excavation, 1,500.00$             

Furnish and Install River Crossing Sign, 16,000.00$          

Furnish and Install 8-Inch PVC Gravity Line 

(8' - 10' Depth), -$                       

Furnish and Install 6-Inch PVC Gravity Line 

(4' - 8' Depth),

960.00$                

No. 4 Railroad Ballast

(3-Inch Limestone), -$                       

Furnish and Install Fence with Gate, -$                       

-$                       

Grade and Compact Servitude Area, -$                       

Remove and Replace 8" Main Line

(0' - 8' Depth)

(Including Excavation and Backfill), -$                       

-$                       

Un-Formed Concrete, -$                       

Reset and Seal Manhole Ring, -$                       

-$                       

Replace Manhole Ring and Cover, -$                       

Furnish and Install Temporary LCDBG 

Project Sign, 2,000.00$             

-$                       

Video Inspection of Sewer Lines, -$                       

Additional Set-Up for Video Inspection, -$                       

-$                       

Clean Sewer Pipe (8" - 10" Diameter), -$                       

Root Removal in Sewer, -$                       

-$                       

Topsoil (Truck Bed Measurement), -$                       

Construct Sanitary Sewer Manhole

(8' - 10' Depth), -$                       

-$                       

#610 Limestone for Driveways and 

Maintenance, 649.81$                

Fill-Crete, -$                       

-$                       

Remove and Replace Concrete Curb and 

Gutter, -$                       

Remove and Relay Culverts (12" - 18" 

Diameter RCP or CMP), -$                       

Remove and Replace Concrete Streets, -$                       

Remove and Replace Concrete Driveway, -$                       

Remove and Replace Concrete Sidewalk,

Remove and Replace Existing Fences,

Special Backfill,

Remove Existing Manhole (All Depths and 

Diameters),

Grease Removal,

Adjust Ring and Cover to Grade,

Formed Concrete,

Furnish and Install Stainless Steel Manhole 

Cover Inserts,

Sawcut 6-Inch Depth,

-$                       
1,000.00$             

-$                       

-$                       

Cleaning and Video of Service,
Temporary Signs and Barricades,
Repair Inverts,

N:\DATA\9162\9162-04 BES\Construction\9162-04 PPE#5
122



JOB NO.: 9162-04 PAGE 3 OF 3

PROJECT:

OWNER:

CONTRACTOR:

NOTICE TO PROCEED DATE: 01/14/23 to 02/28/23

CONTRACT TIME: 365 253 % TIME USED: 69.32%

CONTRACT PRICE: 1,516,403.10$           % COMPLETE: 32.55%

Item

No. Quantity Unit Price Current Previous Total

ESTIMATE FOR PARTIAL PAYMENT NO. 5

F.Y. 2021 LCDBG Sewer System Rehabilitation

City of Abbeville

Shaw Construction Services, LLC, PO Box 3449, St. Francisville, LA 70775

June 20, 2022 PAYMENT PERIOD:

CALENDAR DAYS                 DAYS USED:

TOTAL THIS PERIOD: 493,661.13$                

CONTRACT QUANTITY

Description Amount

BY:    BY:

DATE:    DATE:

   BY:

   DATE:

   NET AMOUNT DUE TO DATE 468,978.07$            

   LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENTS

ORIGINAL CONTRACT PRICE: 1,516,403.10$                 TOTAL OF ABOVE ITEMS 277,544.06$            

24,683.06$              

ADJUSTED CONTRACT PRICE: 1,516,403.10$                 AMOUNT DUE THIS ESTIMATE

   OTHER (MATERIAL ON HAND)

205,429.01$            

   CITY OF ABBEVILLE

   OWNER

CERTIFIED CORRECT:    RECOMMENDED FOR PAYMENT:

SHAW CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, LLC    SELLERS & ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONTRACTOR    LAFAYETTE - ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

216,117.07$            

263,549.06$            

   TOTAL VALUE OF COMPLETED WORK 493,661.13$            

   LESS 5% RETAINED

N:\DATA\9162\9162-04 BES\Construction\9162-04 PPE#5
123



CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER NO. 1

JOB NO.: 9162-04 DATE: March 6, 2023

PROJECT: F.Y. 2021 LCDBG Sewer Sysem Rehabilitation

OWNER: City of Abbeville

CONTRACTOR: Shaw Construction Services, LLC, P.O. Box 3449, St. Francisville, LA 70775

You are hereby requested to comply with the following change from the original contract plans and specifications:

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE DECREASE INCREASE

A. Adjust contract time by 48 days due to
inclement weather delays. $ 0.00 $ 0.00

SUB-TOTAL $ 0.00 $ 0.00

TOTAL $ 0.00

The contract time will increased by 48 calendar days for a completion date of August 7, 2023.

The contract amount will remain unchanged.

RECOMMENDED: DATE:

SELLERS & ASSOCIATES, INC., ENGINEERS

ACCEPTED: DATE:

SHAW CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, LLC, CONTRACTOR

APPROVED: DATE:

CITY OF ABBEVILLE, OWNER

N:\DATA\9162\9162-04 BES\Construction\9162-04 CCO#1.wpd

124



JOB NO.: 8193-17 PAGE 1 OF 2

PROJECT:

OWNER:

CONTRACTOR:

NOTICE TO PROCEED DATE: 01/21/23 to 02/24/23

CONTRACT TIME: 180                              46 % TIME USED: 25.56%

CONTRACT PRICE: 480,890.72$             % COMPLETE: 28.19%

Item
No. Quantity Unit Price Current Previous Total

1. 7.20             Sq. Yd. 270.00           0.00 0.00 0.00

2. 7.20             Sq. Yd. 545.00           1.50 0.00 1.50

3. 447.47        Sq. Yd. 66.00             114.50 0.00 114.50

4. 3.00             Each 900.00           0.00 0.00 0.00

5. 30.00           Cu. Yd. 145.00           5.00 0.00 5.00

6. 60.00           Cu. Yd. 100.00           5.00 0.00 5.00

7. 5.50             Ton 1,745.00       0.00 0.00 0.00

8. 337.50        Sq. Yd. 150.00           58.00 0.00 58.00

9. 3.00             Each 4,180.00       1.00 0.00 1.00

10. 130.00        Ln. Ft. 74.00             0.00 0.00 0.00

11. 70.00           Ln. Ft. 86.00             0.00 0.00 0.00

12. 12.00           Cu. Yd. 360.00           1.50 0.00 1.50

13. 1.00             L.S. 38,600.00     0.20 0.40 0.60

14. 2.00             Cu. Yd. 400.00           0.00 0.00 0.00

15. 4.00             Each 1,400.00       0.00 0.00 0.00

16. 7.00             Sq. Yd. 140.00           0.00 0.00 0.00

17. 1.00             L.S. 40,000.00     0.25 0.25 0.50

18. 40.00           Ln. Ft. 150.00           60.00 0.00 60.00

19. 150.00        Ln. Ft. 8.50               0.00 0.00 0.00

20. 20.00           Ln. Ft. 25.00             0.00 0.00 0.00

21. 2.00             Each 820.00           0.00 0.00 0.00

22. 1.00             L.S. 30,245.00     0.40 0.10 0.50

23. 1.00             Each 1,500.00       2.00 0.00 2.00

24. 310.00        Ln. Ft. 22.00             95.00 0.00 95.00

25. 7.00             Each 750.00           0.00 0.00 0.00

26. 1.00             Each 1,300.00       2.00 0.00 2.00

27. 48.36           Cu. Yd. 1,375.00       15.40 0.00 15.40

28. 240.00        Ln. Ft. 14.00             95.00 0.00 95.00

29. 25.00           Ln. Ft. 11.00             25.00 0.00 25.00

30. 490.00        Ln. Ft. 10.50             245.00 0.00 245.00

31. 185.00        Ln. Ft. 15.50             90.00 0.00 90.00

32. 170.00        Ln. Ft. 7.50               70.00 0.00 70.00

33. 365.00        Ln. Ft. 22.00             100.00 0.00 100.00

34. 5.00             Each 745.00           0.00 0.00 0.00

35. 5.00             Each 1,580.00       0.00 0.00 0.00

36. 240.00        Ln. Ft. 1.00               0.00 0.00 0.00

37. 1,590.00     In. Ft. 2.80               423.00 0.00 423.00

ESTIMATE FOR PARTIAL PAYMENT NO. 2

0.00

0.00

725.00

CONTRACT

DOTD H.014198 Downtown Abbeville Streetscaping, Phase II

City of Abbeville

Southern Constructors, LLC, 6313 Highway 90 E, New Iberia, LA 70560

Amount

PAYMENT PERIOD:January 9, 2023

TOTAL THIS PERIOD:

CALENDAR DAYS                 DAYS USED:

Description

Removal of Asphalt Pavement,

135,570.15$              

QUANTITY

817.50

7,557.00

Concrete Walk (4" Thick),

Handicapped Curb Ramps Type Three 

Ramps, 4,180.00

0.00

0.00

540.00

0.00

8,700.00

Concrete Curb (Barrier) (6"),

Adjusting Water Valve and Meter Box,

Concrete Curb (Barrier) (8"),

Flowable Fill (Class R Concrete Fill),

0.00

Mobilization, 20,000.00

Jacked or Bored Pipe (1") (1" PE Water 

Line), 9,000.00

Plastic Pavement Striping (4" Width) 

(Thermoplastic 125 mil), 0.00

2,572.50

BASE BID

Removal of Base - Soil Cement, Asphalt, or 

BCS,

Removal of Concrete Walks and Drives,

Relocation of Sign (Remove, Store, & Re-

Install Signs),

General Excavation,

Borrow (Vehicular Measurement),

Asphalt Concrete, Drives, Turnouts and 

Miscellaneous,

500.00

0.00

Valve Box (For 1" Gate Valve), 2,600.00

Underground Marker Tape (3") 

(Detectable), 0.00

Saw Cutting Asphalt Concrete Pavement, 1,184.40

Temporary Signs and Barricades (Includes 

Temporary Business Entrances), 23,160.00

0.00

Plants (Tree) (Container) (1 - 1/2 inch cal) 

(Ilex Cassine, 'STD Dahoon Holly', Male 

Type),

Gate Valve (1"), 3,000.00

Water Service Line (1" Polyethylene) (Or 

1" Copper), 2,090.00

Class A1 Concrete (Connection with 

Concrete Walk), 21,175.00

Plastic Pavement Legends and Symbols 

(Handicap Markings) (4" Width - Blue), 0.00

Plastic Pavement Legends and Symbols 

(Handicap Parking), 0.00

Construction Layout, 15,122.50

Top Dressing Mulch (3" Depth),

Topsoil, 0.00

Luminaire (36 Watt) (LED Lamp Modified 

and Installed), 0.00

Relocate Light Poles (14' Ground 

Mounted), 0.00

Conduit with Conductors (PVC/HDPE) (1") 

(4 - #8 AWG), 1,395.00

Conductors (3 - #10 AWG) (Installed in 

Existing Conduit), 525.00

Jacked or Bored Casing (1" PVC or Sch 80) 

(Electrical), 2,200.00

Trenching and Backfilling, 1,330.00

Conduit with Conductors (PVC/HDPE) 

(3/4") (3 - #12 AWG), 275.00

Conduit with Conductors (PVC/HDPE) (1") 

(3 - #8 AWG),

N:\DATA\8193\8193-17\Construction\8193-17 PPE#2
125



JOB NO.: 8193-17 PAGE 2 OF 2

PROJECT:

OWNER:

CONTRACTOR:

NOTICE TO PROCEED DATE: 01/21/23 to 02/24/23

CONTRACT TIME: 180                              46 % TIME USED: 25.56%

CONTRACT PRICE: 480,890.72$             % COMPLETE: 28.19%

Item
No. Quantity Unit Price Current Previous Total

ESTIMATE FOR PARTIAL PAYMENT NO. 2

CONTRACT

DOTD H.014198 Downtown Abbeville Streetscaping, Phase II

City of Abbeville

Southern Constructors, LLC, 6313 Highway 90 E, New Iberia, LA 70560

Amount

PAYMENT PERIOD:January 9, 2023

TOTAL THIS PERIOD:

CALENDAR DAYS                 DAYS USED:

Description

135,570.15$              

QUANTITY

BASE BID

38. 4,530.00     In. Ft. 5.00               378.00 243.00 621.00

39. 1.00             Each 850.00           0.00 0.00 0.00

40. 70.00           Ln. Ft. 270.00           0.00 0.00 0.00

41. 14.00           Ln. Ft. 300.00           0.00 0.00 0.00

42. 441.00        Sq. Yd. 9.70               0.00 0.00 0.00

43. 150.00        Sq. Ft. 46.00             0.00 0.00 0.00

44. 1.00             L.S. 15,265.00     0.25 0.00 0.25

45. 14.00           Ln. Ft. 350.00           0.00 0.00 0.00

46. 5.00             Each 420.00           0.00 0.00 0.00

47. 4.00             Each 3,850.00       0.00 0.00 0.00

BY:    BY:

DATE:    DATE:

   BY:

   DATE:

ORIGINAL CONTRACT PRICE:

Detectable Warning Surface Retrofit for 

Curb Ramps, 0.00

   NET AMOUNT DUE TO DATE

   LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENTS

   AMOUNT DUE THIS ESTIMATE 95,301.59$              

480,890.72$               

480,890.72$               

   TOTAL OF ABOVE ITEMS

   OTHER (MATERIAL ON HAND) -$                           

135,570.15$            

13,557.02$              

122,013.14$            

26,711.55$              

135,570.15$            

   OWNER

CERTIFIED CORRECT:

   SELLERS & ASSOCIATES, INC.

   LAFAYETTE - ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

SOUTHERN CONSTRUCTORS, LLC

CONTRACTOR

   CITY OF ABBEVILLE

   RECOMMENDED FOR PAYMENT:

ADJUSTED CONTRACT PRICE:

   TOTAL VALUE OF COMPLETED WORK

   LESS 10% RETAINED

Irrigation System (Furnished and 

Installed), 3,816.25

Saw Cutting Portland Cement Concrete 

Pavement, 3,105.00

Trench Drains (18" Wide), 0.00

Trench Drains (30" Wide), 0.00

Concrete (Decorative Surface Treatment) 

(Cleaning Concrete Surfaces), 0.00

Pavers (Brick) (Furnished and Installed), 0.00

Electrical Appurtenance (120 V, 20-Amp 

GFI Receptacle), 0.00

Tree Well Planter (Located at Ramps) 0.00

Handrail (Furnished and Installed), 0.00

N:\DATA\8193\8193-17\Construction\8193-17 PPE#2
126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153


	Top
	1.	Charlene Beckett
	2.	Police Dept hire
	1.	Le'Asia Brown congratulations
	2.	Tammy Broussard
	3.	Victoria Bourque-VEDA
	1.	Minutes
	December 20, 2022 Committee meeting
	February 7, 2023 Committee meeting
	January 17, 2023 special meeting
	December 20, 2022 regular meeting
	January 17, 2023 regular meeting
	February 7, 2023 regular meeting
	January 3, 2023 Committee meeting
	January 3, 2023 regular meeting
	January 3, 2023 special meeting

	2.	Ratify bills
	February 2023 check register

	3.	January 2023 budget to actual
	January 2023 Budget to actual report

	1.	Public hearing-ordinances
	Liquor permit ordinance
	Golf cart ordinance
	Trash can variance ordinance

	2.	Adopt ordinances
	3.	Juvenile detention resolution
	Resolution Juvenile detention

	4.	Water Plant quote-S&V
	5.	E Vermilion/N. St. Valerie partial overlay
	6.	Regulator
	7.	Rehab of T-Hangar Taxilanes and apron project
	9255 Plan Change No. 3
	9255 Estimate for Payment No. 3
	9255 ROA
	9255 NOA

	8.	LCDBG PPE #5
	9162-04 PPE#5-LCDBG

	9.	LCDBG Sewer rehab plan change
	9162-04 CCO#1-LCDBG

	10.	Streetscaping PPE #2
	8193-17 PPE#2 - Revised-Streetscape

	11.	500 Second Street
	500 Second Street

	12.	637 Sweet Lane
	Letter from Chris
	637 Sweet Lane

	13.	805 S. Guegnon
	805 S Guegnon

	14.	S. Hollingsworth Bridge
	1.	No old business
	Bottom

